# ALBERTINA KERR CENTERS Finance, Audit & Compliance Committee Minutes October 7, 2020 5 to 7:00 p.m. Via Teams

### **Members Present**

David Connell, Paul Litwinczuk, Rod Malone, Melissa May, Jill Nickerson, Karen Rasmussen, Laura Shipley

# Members Excused

Craig Payne

<u>Staff Present</u> Jeff Carr, Owen Gibson, Janice Jacobs

### **Guests Present**

Carly Harrison & Jill Sherman of Edlen & Co.; Rena Jimenez-Blount & Mark Kantor of Kantor Taylor PC

<u>**Convene**</u> (Karen Rasmussen) Karen convened the meeting at 4:02 p.m.

**Workforce Housing Financing** (Carly Harrison, Jill Sherman, Rena Jimenez-Blount, Mark Kantor) Jill, Carly, Rena and Mark delivered a presentation detailing how the workforce housing financing will work and answered questions. The presentation is attached to these minutes.

- Slide 2 details the sources of funding and where each will be used.
- Slide 3 shows estimated cash flow including rents, expenses, etc.
- Slide 4 describes low income tax credits (LIHTC) for private investors. Kerr's obligation is that if funds run out before construction is complete, Kerr funds the remainder of the project.
- Slide 5 explains that LIHTC require using bonds during the construction equal to the permanent debt amount.
- Slide 6 explains a deferred fee and how it works to provide cash flow to Kerr, and then is repaid.
- Slide 7 explains the Metro bond awarded to the project by the City of Gresham. The amount is confirmed, but the terms of the bond have yet to be communicated.
- Slide 8 discusses selection of Enterprise and Chase as resources for the project.
- Slide 9 lists the terms from Enterprise and Chase.
- Slide 10 gives a timeline for completion of steps.

Next steps: Edlen & Co and Kantor Taylor will provide the language for the Board Resolution to be presented at the November 16<sup>th</sup> Kerr Board meeting. Detailed term sheets can be distributed to the FAC Committee in order to have answers to all questions at the November Board meeting. A question was asked about individual investors participating. The answer is Enterprise will provide a pool of investors who will share the tax credits. A question was asked about final status of preferential availability to targeted potential residents. The answer is Kerr cannot offer preferential leasing to Kerr or specific

Finance, Audit & Compliance Committee Minutes October 7, 2020 Page 1 of 4 renters; however, advance marketing is legal. Kerr leadership already began sharing information with staff about the housing, its reduced rents and amenities.

# ACTION: Jill Sherman will send out Enterprise and Chase term sheets to FAC Committee members during the week of October 12<sup>th</sup>. Members will review and send questions to Jill. A meeting will be set up during the last week of October to go over questions and details.

### ACTION: Kantor Taylor will draft the Board Resolutions.

Jill Sherman, Carly Harrison, Rena Jimenez-Blount and Mark Kantor signed off the meeting at 4:43 p.m.

### Approve Minutes of the August 11, 2020 Meeting (All)

Paul Litwinczuk moved that the minutes be approved. Rod Malone seconded. The motion passed via unanimous vote.

### Review Revised FAC Committee Charter (All)

Discussion was held regarding updates to the Charter around investment oversight. The Foundation will now manage investment policies and portfolio activity, and they will provide a report with updates and positions to the FAC Committee twice annually. Language in the Committee Purpose section will be updated to reflect the Committee's responsibility to monitor "<u>investment and financial</u> policy and procedures." A question was asked about members of the Committee being required to have knowledge of federal and state Medicaid laws, rules and regulations.

ACTION: Owen Gibson will send to the Committee a packet of information on Medicaid specifically prepared for Board members of organizations where Medicaid rules apply. Owen will also schedule annual training for Board members with time for questions and answers.

ACTION: Paul Litwinczuk moved that the updated Committee Charter be approved as presented in the packet, along with the language change to "investment and financial policy and procedures" in the Committee Purpose section. Rod Malone seconded. The motion passed via unanimous vote.

#### Financial Updates (Janice Jacobs)

July Financials: In the interest of time, Janice provided a brief recap of the July financials. Performance was strong at the start of the year. The programs performed well, and the anticipated 6% cut from the State did not occur, both helping revenue. In addition, extra funding came in from ODDS and the CARES Act, along with a one-time donation of \$500k.

August Financials: August performance was again strong. Subacute census was very good. Expenses were under budget. YTD remains strong. Donations came through from the 24 Hours of Kerr virtual event. The programs performed very well. Cash continues in a strong position on the balance sheet. Actual vs. budgeted operating results were \$1.4 million over budget. Administrative staff have gone back to full time and full pay; furloughs have been suspended. There will not be back pay for the salary reductions. Facilities continues to look for land to potentially build a four-bed group home for kids and

complete the transition of the remaining five-bed kids' homes to four-bed homes, which gives Kerr the best financial returns, and the ratio is better for kids and staff. Some potential incremental COVID-19 related expenses may occur due to deferred maintenance in homes during restricted access.

# ACTION: Paul Litwinczuk moved that the financial reports for July and August be approved. Jill Nickerson seconded. The motion passed via unanimous vote.

Audit Update: Janice reported that auditors informed her of some findings. Items, including overstated revenue, were reviewed and determined to be mostly due to turnover, new and temporary staff, new systems and staff not following up. Some case rate reporting was not reconciled. \$156k in 401(k) expenses was not recorded. \$60k did not get recorded during the system conversion in Financial Edge. Gary McGee is working to help complete the audit and to help set up formatting for client accounts.

### ACTION: The next Finance, Audit & Compliance Committee meeting was moved from November 2<sup>nd</sup> to November 11<sup>th</sup> in order to give the auditors and the Accounting team extra time to complete the audit.

### Insurance Review (Janice Jacobs)

The coming year has the potential to see significantly increased insurance premiums. Initials bids should be available by mid-October. Insurance broker RFPs will go out in December. SLT and Board members have input on recommendations. The FAC Committee will be consulted for review when more information is available.

### Review Compliance Dashboard (Owen Gibson)

Owen reported on one significant item in the 4<sup>th</sup> quarter compliance report. A founded abuse case occurred at the 76<sup>th</sup> kids' group home. Kerr has a meeting scheduled with the State next week to discuss licensure restrictions to services. This case was an outlier in terms of the timeline because Kerr could not conduct an internal investigation until the State completed their investigation. The State also has the right to extend their investigation, which they did twice. Through the investigation, the State found liabilities in the intake process at Kerr. One of the two female youths involved should have been screened at intake with greater caution. Chief Program Officer Derrick Perry and program management and the Access Department have completely revamped the intake process. A team of multi-disciplinary staff are now performing thorough assessments at intake through the lens of their expertise to determine placement in Kerr homes. Staff and Kids DD leadership involved in the incident are no longer with Kerr. Board members had no other questions about the compliance report.

# Review Code of Conduct Policy (Owen Gibson)

At the last Board meeting, concerns were expressed about language in the code of conduct policy that seemed to place excessive liability on Board members. Owen conducted research and revised the policy with less assignment to members as being experts in Kerr programs and its associated industry knowledge, and less liability for incidents over which members have little opportunity to manage. Committee members reviewed and discussed the revisions and still felt the language needs work. It was suggested that research into like organizations' policies may be helpful in providing a template.

# ACTION: Owen Gibson, Karen Rasmussen and David Connell will schedule a call to go through the policy and make edits.

#### **Executive Session**

The Committee entered executive session at 6:07 p.m.

# Adjourn (Karen Rasmussen)

Karen adjourned the meeting at 6:18 p.m.

Recorded by Holly Edgar, Corporate Secretary

Finance, Audit & Compliance Committee Minutes October 7, 2020 Page 4 of 4